
      

SAN FRANCISCO BAY TRAIL  
STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, July 18, 2016  9:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.  
Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Suite 700 

Room 7102 Tamalpais 
 

 
AGENDA  

The Board may act on any item on this agenda.  Attachment included* 

 
     
9:30 a.m.  Call to Order   
     
  Adoption of agenda and approval of 5/2/16 minutes*   
     
9:35 a.m.  Announcements by Chair and Boardmembers   
     
9:45 a.m.  Staff Announcements   
     
10:00 a.m.  City of Napa: Stanly Lane Spur Design ($100,000)*  Thompson     
  Review and consider a $100,000 grant request from the City 

of Napa for design, planning, specifications and construction 
documents for a 0.6‐mile spur trail extension to the Napa 
River.  

 

     
10:20 a.m.  City of Vallejo: Vallejo Bluff Trail Design & Engineering 

($125,000)* 
Thompson 

  Review and consider a $125,000 grant request from the City 
of Vallejo for preparation of design and engineering 
documents for the 1.5‐mile Vallejo Bluff Trail.  

 

     
10:40 a.m.  City of Richmond: Goodrick Avenue Construction 

($130,000)* 
Huo 

  Review and consider a $130,000 grant request from the City 
of Richmond for construction of a .3‐mile trail along Goodrick 
Avenue connecting Breuner Marsh and Richmond Parkway 
trail segments. 

 

     
11:00 a.m.  Migrations Check‐In*  Thompson 
  Staff will provide a summary of Migrations outreach efforts 

and request feedback from the Committee. 
 

     
11:30 a.m.  Adjourn Meeting   
     

 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

San Francisco Bay Trail Project 
Steering Committee Meeting Minutes 

ABAG Metro Center 
May 2, 2016 

 
 

Call to Order  
 
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Attendance 
   

Steering Committee        Staff       
John Woodbury, Chair        Maureen Gaffney 
Julie Bondurant, Co‐Chair      Lee Huo       

  Maggie Wenger         Laura Thompson 
Steve McAdam           
Juan Raigoza   
Betsy Wilson         
 
Guests       
Ethan Lavine, BCDC 
Ina Gerhard, Caltrans 
   
               
ACTION:  Adoption of the 5/2/16 agenda and the 3/7/16 minutes: Wenger moved, McAdam 
seconded.   

  
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Maggie Wenger  Steve McAdam 
Juan Raigoza  Betsy Wilson 

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
Announcements by Chair and Boardmembers 
 
‐Wilson   Announced that she is leaving the Coastal Conservancy, after many years of advancing 

the completion of the Bay Trail and working with Bay Trail board members and staff on 
a variety of projects.  

 
Staff and the board recognized Betsy’s contribution to the project.  
 
Staff Announcements 
 
‐Thompson  Announced an event held at Cooley Landing in East Palo Alto on April 16 dedicating the 

new environmental education center at the park. The event was well‐attended by 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

elected officials and the community. This will make a fantastic location for a future Bay 
Trail board meeting. Informed the board that the Google/Bay Trail event in Sunnyvale 
has been rescheduled to Friday, May 20. On June 10, Bay Trail will join our other 
regional trail partners at the Golden Gate Bridge to welcome two Coastal Trail through‐
walkers as they traverse the entire coast raising awareness about the Coastal Trail.  

    
‐Huo  Announced that at 9:30 a.m. on May 12, Bike to Work Day, the City of Emeryville plans 

to open a short but important stretch of Bay Trail along Christy Avenue. When this 
segment is complete, the Bay Trail will be continuous between Golden Gate Fields and 
the Bay Bridge. On May 6 at 10:00 a.m., we will join the California Department of Fish & 
Wildlife at Eden Landing for the joint opening of a section of Bay Trail and a Water Trail 
launch site as part of the South Bay Salt Pond Restoration Project.  

 
‐Gaffney  Announced that Bay Trail maps will be placed in Bike to Work Day bags throughout the 

region with help from our bicycle coalition partners. On Sunday, May 15 at 2:00 p.m. the 
Sonoma Land Trust will dedicate the completion of the 2.5‐mile Sears Point Bay Trail, 
built in conjunction with the Sears Point Wetland Restoration. Elected officials and 
partner representatives will join the celebration with Doug McConnell as host. Sonoma 
Regional Parks has received a Bay Trail grant to study the next segment connection to 
the east. 

 
Alameda Point Bay Trail Realignment Proposal 
 
Huo introduced the Bay Trail in the City of Alameda with an overview of a proposed new route at the 
former Alameda Naval Base on Alameda Point.  The City’s Master Infrastructure Plan for Alameda Point 
includes a proposal to construct new Bay Trail around the entire edge of Alameda Point, including the 
Veteran Affairs property and Seaplane Lagoon as shown in Figure 31 of the plan. The City of Alameda 
submitted a letter on April 12 requesting an official change in the Bay Trail alignment. 
 
Lavine provided additional details from BCDC about the planning process. McAdam raised the question 
about whether a trail realignment could occur to provide bicycle/pedestrian access along “Spirits Alley,” 
a popular destination in the city.  
 
ACTION:  Bondurant moved, McAdam seconded the motion to approve the staff 

recommendation to add the proposed alignment as shown in Figure 31 of the 
Alameda Point Master Infrastructure Plan. In addition, the motion directs staff to 
continue working on an interim “Spirits Alley” alignment. The vote was approved 
unanimously. 

 
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Maggie Wenger  Steve McAdam 
Juan Raigoza  Betsy Wilson 

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

City of American Canyon Augmentation Request 
 
Gaffney introduced the request from the City of American Canyon to augment the active Kimberly Park 
Technical Studies planning grant to include additional funds for the permitting task. $21,884 is the 
estimated need for the task (including a $10,000 contingency that may not be used) and $3,775 remains 
in the project budget, bringing the augmentation request to $18,108.  
 
ACTION:  Raigoza moved, Wilson seconded the motion to approve the staff recommendation to 

augment the Kimberly Park Technical Studies grant by $18,108 to complete the 
necessary permitting for the project. The vote was approved unanimously. 

 
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Maggie Wenger  Steve McAdam 
Juan Raigoza  Betsy Wilson 

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
Bay Trail $6 Million Grant Program Overview 
 
As an information item, Thompson provided a detailed PowerPoint summary and spreadsheet of the 
projects funded under the Coastal Conservancy Block Grant #4, a $6 million grant that was awarded to 
ABAG in 2007 using funds from Proposition 84. The block grant will be completed at the end of 
September.  
 
The Committee suggested adding maps for each project to show what it connects to; sorting by county 
and sending the spreadsheet to the board; sending to legislators (which we have been doing with 
customized packets by district) and presenting to BCDC. 
 
Adjournment  The meeting was adjourned at 12:00 p.m. 
 



   
    

 
MEMO 
 
 
Date:    July 11, 2016 
 
To:    Bay Trail Steering Committee 
 
From:    Maureen Gaffney 
 
Subject:  City of Napa Planning Grant Request—Plans, Specifications and Engineering 

Documents for Stanly Lane Bay Trail Spur 
 

 
This grant request from the City of Napa for $100,000 would fund the planning and design 
portion of this design/build project—a 2,900‐foot spur segment leading from an existing spine 
segment of Bay Trail on Stanly Lane near the Starmont Winery in rural Napa County. Currently, 
the 1.5 mile fully separated trail adjacent to Stanly Lane ends abruptly at the Starmont Winery 
parking lot. The spur segment would lead to the edge of the Napa River via a vineyard access 
road and a levee that is currently and would continue to be used by PG&E to access equipment 
at the river’s edge. A bench and trash can would be installed, and removable bollards will 
prevent use by unauthorized vehicles.  The river segment is on land owned and managed by the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and an easement specifically referencing the Bay 
Trail exists on the levee. The new ViaVage resort on Stanly Crossroad, as well as other area 
wineries, are contributing a significant amount of funding for the construction of the trail. City 
of Napa staff will maintain the trail with regular trash pick‐up.  
 
Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends full funding of this grant request. The Stanly Lane 
Bay Trail Spur will provide a unique opportunity to access the banks of the Napa River, and will 
close an important and long‐standing gap in the Bay Trail in an area that will see increasing use 
in the coming years with the opening of the nearby resort and the presence of Starmont 
Winery.  



Bay Trail Planning Grant Application Score Sheet 

Applicant: City of Napa 
Project Title Stanly Lane Bay Trail Final Design, Engineering, 

Plans and Specs 
Project Description A 1.5 mile segment of high‐quality Bay Trail adjacent to 

Stanly Lane ends abruptly at the Starmont Winery parking 
lot. The project would result in a 2,900 foot spur segment 
leading from the existing spine segment of Bay Trail to the 
edge of the Napa River via a vineyard access road and a 
levee that is currently and would continue to be used by 
PG&E to access equipment at the river’s edge. A bench and 
trash‐can would be installed, and removable bollards would 
prevent use by unauthorized vehicles.  The river segment is 
on land owned and managed by the California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife and an easement specifically referencing 
the Bay Trail exists on the levee. The new ViaVage resort on 
Stanly Crossroad, as well as other area wineries, are 
contributing a significant amount of funding for the 
construction of the trail. City of Napa staff will maintain the 
trail with regular trash pick‐up. Construction is expected to 
immediately follow planning and design with an expected 
completion in 2018.  

 
Funding Request  $100,000 
Total Project Cost  $125,000 
I. RATIONALE FOR PLANNING 
STUDY 

  

rationale for planning grant 
(0 to 30 points) 

low = 0 to 10 
medium = 11 to 20 

high = 21 to 30 

Medium/High. Access to the Napa River is 
highly desirable and the prospect of a Bay 
Trail grant for completion of this key piece 
of trail was a catalyst for moving this 
project forward.  

23 

 30 Points Possible  23 
II. CRITICAL BAY TRAIL LINK  Score 

length of segment 
(3 or 5 points) 

less than ½ mile = 3 
½ mile or greater = 5 

 
.6 miles 

 
5 
 

gap closure 
(5 to 15 points) 
no closure = 5 

extension of existing trail = 10 
full closure = 15 

 
Once constructed, the Stanly Lane Bay 

Trail Spur will result in a full gap closure.  

 
15 

spine, spur or connector 
(4 to 10 points) 

connector = 4 
spur = 7 

spine = 10 

 
Spur 

 
7 



Bay Trail Planning Grant Application Score Sheet 

 30 Points Possible 
 

27 
 

III. PARTNERSHIP / 
LEVERAGE 

  

collaboration between multiple 
parties 

(0 to 5 points) 

This project is a collaboration between the 
Bay Trail, City of Napa, Friends of the 
Napa River and Starmont Winery. 

 
5 

matching or in-kind services 
(0 to 5 points) 

Matching funds in the amount of $25,000 
are being provided from the City of Napa, 

and in-kind services in the amount of 
$2,000 will be provided by Friends of the 

Napa River for permitting support, 
community and stakeholder outreach 

5 
 

 10 Points Possible  10 
IV. REGIONAL NEED / 
CONNECTIONS 

  

connects to existing trails and 
destinations 

(0 to 5 points)  

As a gap closure project, the Stanly Lane 
Bay Trail spur will connect directly to 1.5 
miles of existing high-quality, Class I Bay 
Trail to the north, and to an additional 1.8 
miles of existing Bay Trail in the form of 
Class II bike lanes on Golden Gate Drive. 
The spur will provide a new destination on 
the Napa River not previously open to the 
public. Once the Bay Trail at the Via Vage 
Resort on Stanly Crossroad is complete in 
2018, the new Stanly Lane Spur trail will 
connect through the resort on a new 
segment of Bay Trail, and will also connect 
to existing trail on Cuttings Wharf and Las 
Amigas Roads. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5 

potential to serve as alternative 
transportation route 

(0 to 5 points) 

This trail will be used for recreational 
purposes. 

 
0 

facilitation of community access 
and connections 

(0 to 5 points) 

The trail will provide new access to the 
banks of the Napa River  

 
3 

support in local plans 
(0 to 5 points) 

Bay Trail Plan, City of Napa Bicycle & 
Pedestrian Plan, Napa Regional Park and 
Open Space District Master Plan, Napa 
County Bicycle Plan, Envision Napa 2020, 
Living River Flood Control Project for the 
Napa River 

 
 
5 

economically-disadvantaged 
community 

(0 to 5 points) 
9% pop. or less below poverty level 

= 0; 10% pop. or greater below 
poverty level = 5 

 
 
11% of Napa’s population lives below the 
poverty level. 

 
 
5 

 25 Points Possible  18 
V. COMMUNITY SUPPORT   

letters of support from partners Friends of the Napa River, Napa County 4 



Bay Trail Planning Grant Application Score Sheet 

and local advocates 
(0 to 5 points) 

Supervisor Wagenknecht, Napa Bike.  

 5 Points Possible  
 

4 

   
Total Score 100 Points Possible 82 

 



San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 1 of 10 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY TRAIL 
Grant Application 

 
The San Francisco Bay Trail Project is soliciting grant applications for trail planning and 
construction projects that will complete gaps in the Bay Trail.  Funding for this program 
is made possible by the State Coastal Conservancy.  
 
Grant Program Basics:  Local, State or federal government agencies, special districts 
and nonprofit organizations are eligible. The program favors construction of Bay Trail 
gaps, matching or in-kind contributions, innovative solutions and partnerships. 
Feasibility, design or technical studies that overcome obstacles to future trail 
development are also eligible.  See www.baytrail.org for more information. 
 
Note:  The following are generally not eligible: a) trail projects required as part of a permit approval or as 
mitigation for another project, or b) permitting costs. 
 
Applicant Information 
 
Lead Agency Name City of Napa, Parks and Recreation Dept. 
Address 1850 Soscol Ave, Suite 201, Napa CA 94559 
Contact Name/Title John Coates, Parks and Recreation Director 
Phone Number 707-257-9529 Fax number  
E-mail jcoates@cityofnapa.org 
 
Project Information 
 
Project Title Stanly Lane Trail Extension to the Napa River 
Project Location East end of Stanly Lane to the Napa River 
Length of Trail Segment 2,900 feet Does project close gap? yes 
State Senate District 3rd State Assembly District 4th 
Congressional District 5th   
Latitude/Longitude 38°14'36.52"N/ 122°17'27.55"W  
Project Partners Friends of the Napa River 
  
Proposed Start Date 10/01/2016 Proposed Completion Date 10/1/17 
Grant Request $100,000 Total Project Cost $125,000 
 
Matching Contributions  

Amount $25,000* Funding Source City of Napa 
Amount **TBD Funding Source ** TBD 
Amount    Funding Source  





San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 3 of 10 

 
Attachments 
 
1.  Digital project location map  
2.  Detailed project area map with trail segment clearly marked (digital) 
3.  Project budget (show total project cost and all matching funds) 
4.  Project schedule 
5.  Environmental review: date (or expected date) and type of environmental 
document adopted or certified  
6.  Letters of support  
7.  Digital high resolution photos of project site  
8.  Description of how the project will conform with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act 
9.  Description of how the project will address sea level rise vulnerability and  
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions  
 
Send a digital copy of the grant application with attachments to Laura Thompson, Bay 
Trail Project Manager, laurat@abag.ca.gov 
 
 
Project description continued: 
 
One bench will be installed at the River’s edge, and trash receptacles will be placed along 
the trail and maintained by City of Napa staff. Removable bollards will be placed at the 
end of the road/beginning of the trail portion to prevent traffic other than authorized 
vehicles (PG&E, CDFW and City of Napa maintenance, emergency vehicles.)  

The proposed project connects the existing San Francisco Bay Trail from its current 
end point on Stanly Lane, extending it to the bank of the Napa River. Trail users will 
be able to follow the trail along an existing levee to the banks of the Napa River very 
near the historic "Soscol Landing" ferry crossing. This crossing was used extensively in 
the mid to late 1800's as the gateway to the Napa Valley, and to cross the Napa River 
before bridges were built. Extending the Stanly Lane trail will allow the community and 
visitors to once again access the River in this location.  Furthermore, the trail passes 
through marshland managed by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and 
trail goers will have the opportunity to observe and learn about the local wildlife that 
utilizes the marsh habitat.  
 
Currently, the formal, paved and marked Bay Trail ends unceremoniously at the 
driveway to the Starmont Winery. The proposed extension will continue from there 
along the road, turn right at the end of the road and follow a vineyard access road 
before turning left onto the levee that bisects California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (CDFW) managed ‘Napa Sonoma Marshes State Wildlife Area.’ The trail will 
follow the top of this existing levee out to the Napa River. This levee is currently and 
will continue to be used periodically by PG&E  to access equipment at the river’s edge. 
City trucks will also have vehicle access to the trail for trash collection and 
maintenance. Removable bollards will prevent use by unauthorized vehicles.  By 
utilizing the existing roads as a base for the trail, adverse effects on sensitive habitats 
will be avoided.  
 



San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 4 of 10 

1.  Digital project location map  
 

 
 
 
 



San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 5 of 10 

2.  Detailed project area map with trail segment clearly marked (digital, attached) 
 

Stanley Ranch trail extension  - 2,900' 

 
 
 
 

 

- - - - - Proposed trail extension 



San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 6 of 10 

3.  Project budget (show total project cost and all matching funds) 
 
 
 

Stanly Lane/Napa River Trail Connection 
 

Planning and Design 
Funding sources  Description        Amount 

ABAG Grant           $100,000.00

 City of Napa 
The City of Napa will provide 
matching funds as needed to 
complete the project on time.        $25,000.00

      Total  $125,000.00

 
Phase II of the project would involve construction.  While construction is not part of this application, 
below are estimated costs for construction, which will be finalized during the planning phase. 
 

Construction 
 
Expense 

Item   Detail  Cost  Number  Total  

Trail ‐ .60  mile section *  ADA approved surface  $9.00 29,000 sf  $261,000.00

Signage  Trail Ord  ‐ aluminum  $100.00 2  $200.00

Trash receptacle  Powder coated steel  $850.00 2  $1,700.00

Bench 
Powder coated steel with 
recycled plastic slats  $850.00 1  $850.00

Bollards  Removable  $500.00 2  $1,000.00

Total   $264,750.00

 
 
 

 
 
 



San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 7 of 10 

 
4.  Project schedule 
 
Planning and design October 1, 2016-August 1, 2017 
 
5.  Environmental review: date (or expected date) and type of environmental document 
adopted or certified  
 Environmental review for completion of the trail out to the river, as planned for 
this project, was completed along with the rest of the Stanly Lane Trail with the approval 
of the Vie Vage Resort in 1998. This document will require review and possible update.  
 
6.  Letters of support  
 a. Friends of the Napa River 
 b. Napa County Regional Parks and Open Space District 
 c. Napa County Bicycle Coalition 
 
7.  Digital high resolution photos of project site  
 

 
This is the existing Stanly Lane trail on the right side of Stanly Lane, looking east toward 
the Napa River. The current trail ends, mid photo, at the Starmont Winery driveway, and 
the proposed trail extension would start there.  
 



San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 8 of 10 

 
Facing Southeast, this is where Stanly Lane ends and the vineyard frontage road begins. 
 

 
Looking Northwest along the vineyard access road toward Stanly Lane and the Butler 
Bridge. 



San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 9 of 10 

 
This gate marks the start of the levee portion of the trail leading through the CDFW 
marshland to the Napa River.  
 
 

 
Stakeholders meeting to discuss the trail extension at the proposed trail’s end at the 
edge of the Napa River. 
 



San Francisco Bay Trail Grant Application  Page 10 of 10 

8.  Description of how the project will conform with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
The existing base for the trail is relatively level and is already elevated above flood 
zones. The trail surface will be improved for accessibility and durability. Accessibility will 
be incorporated into the design plans, and the project design will meet State and Federal 
requirements for access by persons with disabilities and follow sound trail layout and 
design principles, as described in the May 2014 Accessibility Standards for Federal 
Outdoor Developed Areas. 
 
 
9.  Description of how the project will address sea level rise vulnerability and  
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
 
The life of the improvements associated with this project are anticipated to last 30 years. 
The full three feet of sea level rise aren’t expected until 2100. In the event of any 
flooding, the City of Napa will  complete any necessary repairs in order to ensure the trail 
is fully functional and accessible.  
 
Providing safe trails on which to bicycle, walk or run allows for transportation other than 
in cars. The development of the VieVage resort will bring thousands of additional visitors 
to the Carneros region annually. Completion of this trail to the river will give those 
visitors and locals opportunities for outdoor activities without the need to drive to 
another location.  



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

June 13, 2016  
 
Maureen Gaffney 
Bay Trail Planner 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), 
375 Beale Street, Suite 700 
San Francisco, CA 94105‐2001 
 
Subject:  Support of Grant Request for the Stanley Lane Extension of the Bay Trail to 

the Napa River 
 
The Napa County Regional Park and Open Space District wishes to express its full support of the 
City of Napa’s project to extend the Bay Trail from the end of Stanley Lane to the Napa River 
just south of the Highway 29 bridge over the Napa River. 
 
Completion of the Bay Trail in Napa County is a goal in the District Master Plan adopted in 2008 
and updated in 2011.  Our District shares the vision of this Bay Trail shoreline access along with 
Friends of the Napa River, Carneros region winery owners, an adjacent resort developer, grape 
growers and associated public utilities as well as the City of Napa.   We have confidence that 
the broad‐based interest that this segment of the Bay Trail enjoys will ensure that matching 
funds can be generated to complete the project, from planning, permitting and construction 
through long term maintenance of durable path surface and furnishings specified by the City of 
Napa. 
 
Prospects of having an additional public access point at this tidal influenced reach of the Napa 
River in the Carneros region of Napa County will enhance the appeal of the San Francisco Bay 
Trail, and become a lasting recreational and working asset for the broader Bay Area community. 
   
We encourage your approval of grant funding for this important regional project as requested 
by the City of Napa. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Bower Turjanis 
President, Board of Directors 
 

1195 Third Street, Second Floor, Napa, Calif. 94559 
telephone:  (707) 259.5933     web:  www.napaoutdoors.org     email:  info@ncrposd.org 

Karen Bower Turjanis 
Director Ward One 

Tony Norris 
Director Ward Two 

Brent Randol 
Director Ward Three 

Dave Finigan  
Director Ward Four 

Barry Christian 
Director Ward Five 



   
    

 
MEMO 
 
 
Date:    July 11, 2016 
 
To:    Bay Trail Steering Committee 
 
From:    Maureen Gaffney 
 
Subject:  City of Vallejo Grant Request—Vallejo Bluff Trail Final Design & Engineering 
 

 
Background: In 2006, the Steering Committee provided $17,000 to match a grant in the same 
amount from the Bay Area Ridge Trail for Landpeople—a Benicia based consultant—to prepare 
an alignment feasibility study for the joint Bay/Ridge Trail alignment between Benicia State 
Recreation Area and the Carquinez Bridge. A key finding from this study was the identification 
of a preferred alignment between an existing segment of Bay/Ridge Trail along the Carquinez 
Strait and existing trail on Maritime Academy Drive. This segment is known as the Vallejo Bluff 
Trail.  
 
Current Request:  The City of Vallejo is currently requesting $125,000 each from both the Bay 
Trail and the Bay Area Ridge Trail to bring the 1.5‐mile Vallejo Bluff Trail segment to “shovel‐
ready” status. The grants would cover the following tasks:  
 

 Complete environmental review under CEQA, which may require updating 
             previous environmental studies; 
 

 Work with Caltrans to: 
 
1. identify and complete additional required studies (e.g., advance planning, 
geotechnical, access control),  
2. ensure design will meet safety requirements and needs within the I‐80 undercrossing 
area (e.g., retaining walls, barriers, lighting), and  
3.  determine and fulfill the appropriate process for Caltrans approval (i.e., obtain an 
encroachment permit and/or complete a Permit Engineering Evaluation Report (PEER)). 

 

 Work with private landowner along the planned route to obtain an access easement; 

 Refine cost estimates, overall and within the Caltrans right‐of‐way; 

 Develop a maintenance agreement satisfactory to Caltrans; 

 Produce 100% engineering design. 
 
 
 



   
    

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends full funding of this planning grant request. The Bay 
and Ridge Trails have long sought to move this important gap—a key segment in the Carquinez 
Strait Scenic Loop Trail—forward, but staff resources at the City of Vallejo had been previously 
unavailable. The City has demonstrated a renewed interest and capacity for this project and is 
moving forward on negotiations with Caltrans and the private landowner from whom an 
easement is required. This segment is also part of the proposed alignment for the Great Delta 
Trail, now under development. Due to timing issues associated with the respective Bay Trail and 
Ridge Trail funding sources, the Bay Trail grant would pay for the early tasks and the Ridge Trail 
grant will fund the later phases.  



Bay Trail Planning Grant Application Score Sheet 

Applicant: City of Vallejo 
Project Title Vallejo Bluff Trail Final Design, Engineering, 

Environmental Review 
Project Description The goal of the project is to bring the 1.5‐mile Vallejo Bluff 

Trail segment to “shovel‐ready” status. The combined Bay 
and Ridge Trail grants ($125,000 each) would allow the City 
to hire consultants to perform the following tasks:  
 

 Complete environmental review under CEQA, which 
may require updating previous environmental 
studies; 

 

 Work with Caltrans to: 
 

1. identify and complete additional required studies (e.g., 
advance planning, geotechnical, access control),  
2. ensure design will meet safety requirements and needs 
within the I‐80 undercrossing area (e.g., retaining walls, 
barriers, lighting), and  
3.  determine and fulfill the appropriate process for Caltrans 
approval (i.e., obtain an encroachment permit and/or 
complete a Permit Engineering Evaluation Report (PEER)). 
 

 Work with private landowner along the planned 
route to obtain an access easement; 

 Refine cost estimates, overall and within the Caltrans 
right‐of‐way; 

 Develop a maintenance agreement satisfactory to 
Caltrans; 

 Produce 100% engineering design 
Funding Request  $125,000 
Total Project Cost  $275,000 
I. RATIONALE FOR PLANNING 
STUDY 

  

rationale for planning study 
(0 to 30 points) 

low = 0 to 10 
medium = 11 to 20 

high = 21 to 30 

High. The Bay and Ridge Trails have 
funded previous work on this important 
gap that is a key piece of the Carquinez 
Strait Scenic Loop Trail, and is also a 
planned segment of the Great Delta Trail. 

26 

 30 Points Possible  26 
II. CRITICAL BAY TRAIL LINK  Score 

length of segment 
(3 or 5 points) 

less than ½ mile = 3 
½ mile or greater = 5 

 
1.5 miles 

 
5 
 



Bay Trail Planning Grant Application Score Sheet 

gap closure 
(5 to 15 points) 
no closure = 5 

extension of existing trail = 10 
full closure = 15 

 
Once constructed, the Vallejo Bluff Trail 

will result in a full gap closure.  

 
15 

spine, spur or connector 
(4 to 10 points) 

connector = 4 
spur = 7 

spine = 10 

 
Spine 

 
10 

 30 Points Possible 
 

30 
 

III. PARTNERSHIP / 
LEVERAGE 

  

collaboration between multiple 
parties 

(0 to 5 points) 

This project is a collaboration between the 
Bay Trail, Ridge Trail, City of Vallejo, 
Caltrans and the Great Delta Trail. 

 
5 

matching or in-kind services 
(0 to 5 points) 

In-kind services in the amount of at least 
$25,000 include project management, 

review of documents, collaboration and 
negotiation with Caltrans and private 

landowner, communication with Vallejo 
City Council. 

4 
 

 10 Points Possible  9 
IV. REGIONAL NEED / 
CONNECTIONS 

  

connects to existing trails and 
destinations 

(0 to 5 points)  

As a gap closure project, the Vallejo Bluff 
Trail will connect to the existing ¾-mile 
Bay/Ridge Trail along the Strait to the 
southeast, and to two miles of existing Bay 
Trail to the south across the Carquinez 
Bridge into Contra Costa County. 

 
5 

potential to serve as alternative 
transportation route 

(0 to 5 points) 

While this trail will be mainly used for 
recreational purposes, it has some 
potential as a transportation route. 

2 

facilitation of community access 
and connections 

(0 to 5 points) 

The Vallejo Bluff Trail will offer previously 
unavailable recreational resources to a 
community with few options for healthy, 
free exercise. The Bluff Trail will connect to 
the Carquinez Bridge and to the rest of the 
Carquinez Strait Scenic Loop Trail, as well 
as connecting neighborhoods to the 
shoreline and to each other.   

4 

support in local plans 
(0 to 5 points) 

Bay Trail Plan, Solano County Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Plan, Vallejo General Plan 
currently being updated.  

4 

economically-disadvantaged 
community 

(0 to 5 points) 
9% pop. or less below poverty level 

= 0; 10% pop. or greater below 
poverty level = 5 

 
Vallejo is a disadvantaged community with 
17% of its population living below the 
poverty level.  

 
5 



Bay Trail Planning Grant Application Score Sheet 

 25 Points Possible  20 
V. COMMUNITY SUPPORT   

letters of support from partners 
and local advocates 

(0 to 5 points) 

Joint letter of support from 
Assemblymember Dodd and Bonilla, Bay 
Area Ridge Trail, Delta Protection 
Commission 

4 
 

 5 Points Possible  
 

4 

   
Total Score 100 Points Possible 89 

 









Vallejo Bluff Trail Design & Engineering Project Budget 
Bay Trail Grant      $125,000 

Ridge Trail Grant      $125,000 

City of Vallejo in-kind       $25,000 

  

TOTAL       $275,000 

 

Vallejo Bluff Trail Design & Engineering Project Schedule 
Execute grant agreement with ABAG July 11, 2016-August 1, 2016 

Prepare RFP for Vallejo Bluff Trail CEQA, Design and Engineering 

Services 

August 1, 2016-September 1, 

2016 

Interview and onboard prospective consultants, negotiate SOW, 

submit draft work program to ABAG/Coastal Conservancy for 
review and approval, secure signed contract 

September 1—November 30, 

2016 

Work with Caltrans to: 

 
[1] identify and complete additional required studies 

(e.g., advance planning, geotechnical, access control),  
 

[2] ensure design will meet safety requirements and needs within 
the I-80 undercrossing area (e.g., retaining walls, barriers, 
lighting), and  

 
[3] determine and fulfill the appropriate process for Caltrans 

approval (i.e., obtain an encroachment permit and/or complete a 
Permit Engineering Evaluation Report (PEER)). 

 

 

 
 

 
 

December 2016—September 
2017 

Work with private landowner to obtain an access easement 

 

June 2016—September 2017 

Complete environmental review under CEQA. May require 

updating previous environmental studies 
 

December 2016—July 1, 2017 

Refine cost estimates, overall and within Caltrans right-of-way 
 

December 2016—September 
2017 

Develop a maintenance agreement satisfactory to Caltrans 
 

December 2016—September 
2017 

Significant progress toward 100% engineering design. 
 

December 2016—September 
2017 

 
Note: More specific tasks and timelines will be negotiated between the City of Vallejo and 

the selected consultant team. Due to the expiration of Bay Trail grant funds at the end of 
2017 and a Ridge Trail funding stream that lasts through 2018, the Bay Trail grant will 
fund the first phases of work and the Ridge Trail grant will fund the later phases.  

 



 
Environmental Review: The grant will assist with preparation of an Initial Study 

and possible Mitigated Negative Declaration under CEQA. It is important to note, 
however, that the grant project itself is exempt from CEQA as it is involves only 

data gathering, planning, and feasibility analyses for possible future actions that 
have not yet been authorized or approved by the Conservancy or another agency 
and is thus statutorily exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 

(“CEQA”) pursuant to 14 California Code of Regulations Section 15262. 
 

Sea level rise vulnerability and GHG Emissions: The segment of trail in 
question is significantly above sea level and well out of any future inundation zone. 
The new trail, once constructed, will offer a non-motorized route between 

neighborhoods, making an important connection to the Carquinez Bridge and to 
businesses along Sonoma Boulevard. Such a viable trail connection may reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions as some residents choose to walk or ride to destinations 
along this route instead of using a vehicle.  
 

How will this project conform with ADA? More detailed design and engineering 
is needed to determine how this trail segment will meet ADA standards. The initial 

feasibility study prepared for this trail segment (The Vallejo Bay Trail/Ridge Trail 
Study, 2008) evaluated two alternatives—a paved Class I trail and a natural surface 

trail with some segments exceeding ADA slopes. No final alignment or type of 
surface was chosen at that time and will be within the prevue of this grant-funded 
work. 

















 

 
 
 
 
 
 

June 30, 2016 

 

Laura Thompson 

Project Manager 

ABAG/San Francisco Bay Trail  

375 Beale Street, Suite 700 

San Francisco, CA  94105 

 

Subject: Support Vallejo Bluff Trail Final Design and Engineering 

 

Dear Ms. Thompson: 

 

I am writing to convey my strong support for an ABAG/Bay Trail grant to the City of Vallejo to 

bring to “shovel-ready” status a 1.5-mile joint Ridge Trail/Bay Trail section along the Carquinez 

Strait in Solano County. 

 

This is one of two remaining joint Bay/Ridge Trail gaps on the Solano side of the Carquinez 

Scenic Loop Trail, which connects the shorelines of Vallejo and Benicia on the north side of the 

strait. It is anticipated that this section will also become part of the Great California Delta Trail 

alignment. The Vallejo Bluffs trail section will connect east and west Vallejo across Interstate-

80, and help make connections from the existing Bay/Ridge Trail along the Carquinez Strait to 

the bicycle/pedestrian trail on the Al Zampa bridge and the Bay Trail along Mare Island Strait. 

Design will also enable a future trail connection to neighborhoods to the northeast. 

 

Both the Ridge Trail and Bay Trail systems are themselves designated as “Priority Conservation 

Areas” (PCAs), a component of Plan Bay Area, because they help provide natural resource, 

scenic, recreational, and/or ecological values and ecosystem functions. This particular trail 

section will also help implement the Solano County Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan, and will be 

consistent with the City of Vallejo’s General Plan Update that is now underway. 

 

The San Francisco Bay Trail, and this section in particular, is important to both my District as 

well as Assemblyman Dodd’s District because of its significant contribution to regional 

recreation values. It also provides a useful connection across Interstate-80, enhancing mobility 

options and opportunities for active living. 

 

Thank you for your work to complete the San Francisco Bay Trail in Solano County. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

          

 
Susan A Bonilla      Bill Dodd 

Assemblywoman, 14
th

 District    Assemblyman, 4
th

 District 

STATE CAPITOL 

P.O. BOX 942849 

SACRAMENTO, CA 94249-0014 

(916) 319-2014 

FAX (916) 319-2114 

 

DISTRICT OFFICE 

2151 SALVIO ST, SUITE 395 

Concord, CA 94520 

(925) 521-1511 

FAX (925) 602-1536 
 

 

SUSAN A. BONILLA 
CHAIR, HUMAN SERVICES 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN, FOURTEENTH DISTRICT 

COMMITTEES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

BANKING AND FINANCE 

HEALTH  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

STEM SELECT COMMITTEE 

STATE ALLOCATION BOARD 







 
MEMO 
 
 
Date:  July 11, 2016 
 
To:  Bay Trail Steering Committee 
 
From: Lee Huo 
 
Subject: Consideration of a $130,000 Grant Request from the City of 

Richmond to Construct a 0.3-mile Segment of Bay Trail Spine 
along Goodrick Avenue between Richmond Parkway and the 
Breuner Marsh Bay Trail Segment in the City of Richmond 

 
 
 
The City of Richmond is requesting $130,000 to construct a 0.3-mile 
segment of the Bay Trail spine along Goodrick Avenue from Richmond 
Parkway to the Breuner Marsh Bay Trail in the City of Richmond.  The 
proposed trail would be a Class I facility with a 10-foot-wide cross-section 
with two-foot-wide shoulders on both sides. The trail will be constructed to 
meet ADA accessibility requirements.  Although the project is expected to 
generate some greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, the overall effect of the 
project will be to reduce GHG emissions by encouraging people to use the 
Bay Trail as an alternative transportation corridor. Any construction related 
GHG impacts will be evaluated and mitigated as necessary under the Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) that will be prepared for this 
project under CEQA.  This project is not expected to be impacted by sea level 
rise since it will be at the same or higher elevation than the proposed 
Breuner segment of the Bay Trail and staging area which were designed at 
an elevation that will not be impacted by the expected sea level rise in the 
area. 
 
Although this segment of trail is a moderate length at 0.3 miles, the Goodrick 
Avenue Bay Trail segment will close a gap between the existing Bay Trail on 
Richmond Parkway and the 1.5-mile Bay Trail segment that will be completed 
with the Breuner Marsh Project.  Together these two segments will close a 
critical gap that forms a continuous Bay Trail from Point Pinole Regional 
Shoreline in North Richmond to the Albany Bulb.  With the expected 
completion of the Gilman Street to Buchanan segment of the Bay Trail, these 
three projects would potentially create a continuous Bay Trail from North 
Richmond to the Oakland waterfront.     
 



Ultimately, this extensive stretch of Bay Trail will serve a variety of 
communities including North Richmond, Point Richmond, the Iron Triangle, 
Marina Bay, El Cerrito, Richmond Annex, Albany, Berkeley, Emeryville, 
Oakland and provide access to a large number of shoreline recreational 
opportunities such as Cesar Chavez Park, the Albany Bulb, Marina Bay, Point 
Isabel Regional Shoreline, Rosie the Riveter WWII Homefront National 
Historical Park, Miller Knox Regional Shoreline, and Point Pinole Regional 
Shoreline. In addition, this length of continuous Bay Trail will serve as an 
alternative transportation corridor to a multitude of destinations for 
recreational, commute, and every day purposes. It will also eventually serve 
as a connection to regional transportation hubs such as the future Hercules 
Intermodal Station, Richmond Ferry terminal, and Berkeley Ferry terminal. 
 
The total project cost for the proposed work is $1,069,000.  The City of 
Richmond indicates that they expect the remainder of the project funding to 
come from Contra Costa Measure J funds which has recently released a call 
for projects. City staff have indicated via email that they expect the IS/MND 
to be certified by October 2016.  Construction is expected to begin April 1, 
2017, and completed by August 1, 2017.   
 
 
   
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of the grant request in the amount of $130,000.  
The project ranked fairly high in scoring at 89 points.  The 0.3 miles of Bay 
Trail proposed in this project will help to close a gap in the Bay Trail spine 
and complete a continuous Bay Trail stretching from North Richmond to the 
Oakland waterfront that will provide connections and access to major 
destination points and a large number of diverse communities. It will have an 
extremely high potential to serve as an alternative transportation corridor for 
non-motorized modes of travel.  The proposed project enjoys strong support. 
EBRPD, TRAC, Bike East Bay, the North Richmond Municipal Advisory Council, 
the Parchester Village Neighborhood Council, the Shields-Reid Residents 
Neighborhood Council, and Verde Elementary School have provided letters of 
support. The grant amount requested from the Bay Trail Project would 
represent 12.2% of the total project cost and will be used to leverage the 
remainder of the funding from the City of Richmond’s expected application 
under Contra Costa County’s Measure J funding program. 
 



Bay Trail Construction Grant Application Score Sheet 

Applicant:  City of Richmond 
Project Title Goodrick Avenue Bay Trail Construction Project 
Project Description This project would involve the construction of 0.3 miles of 

Bay Trail spine along Goodrick Avenue from Richmond 
Parkway to the Breuner Marsh Bay Trail in Richmond. The 
proposed trail will be a Class I trail with a 10-foot-wide 
paved section and two-foot-wide shoulders on both sides. 

Funding Request  $130,000 
Total Project Cost  $1,069,000 

   
I. CRITICAL BAY TRAIL LINK  Score 

length of segment 
(3 or 5 points) 

less than ½ mile = 3 
½ mile or greater = 5 

 
0.3 miles 

 
3 

gap closure 
(2 to 12 points) 
no closure = 2 

extension of existing trail = 6 
full closure = 12 

Yes. Along with the Breuner Marsh Bay Trail 
soon to be under construction, this project 
will close a Bay Trail gap between Richmond 
Parkway and Point Pinole Regional Shoreline. 

 
12 

spine, spur or connector 
(2 to 8 points) 
connector = 2 

spur = 6 
spine = 8 

 
 

Spine  

 
 
8 

trail classification: I, II or III 
(1 to 5 points) 

class III = 1 
class II = 3 
class I = 5 

 
 

Class I 

 
 
5 

shoreline experience/proximity 
to bay 

(0 to 5 points) 

Although the Goodrick Avenue Bay Trail 
segment will not be along the shoreline, it 
will lead Bay Trail users from the Richmond 
Parkway Bay Trail segment which does not 
have views of the Bay to the Breuner section 
of the Bay Trail that will provide a shoreline 
experience and expansive views of the Bay. 

 
3 

potential for high use 
(0 to 5 points) 

Along with the construction of the 1.5 mile 
Bay Trail spine that will be completed as 
part of the Breuner Marsh project, the 0.3-
mile Goodrick Avenue Bay Trail segment will 
close a critical gap and provide a continuous 
Bay Trail from Point Pinole Regional 
Shoreline to the Albany Bulb.  
This extensive stretch of Bay Trail will 
provide access to a large variety of shoreline 
recreational opportunities such as the 
Albany Bulb, Marina Bay, Point Isabel 
Regional Shoreline, Rosie the Riveter WWII 
Homefront National Historical Park, Miller 
Knox Regional Shoreline, and Point Pinole 

 
5 



Bay Trail Construction Grant Application Score Sheet 

Regional Shoreline. In addition, the length of 
continuous Bay Trail that will result from this 
gap closure will create a safe and useful 
commute corridor for bicyclists between 
North Richmond and Albany. Ultimately, this 
stretch of Bay Trail will also serve as a 
connection to regional transit centers such 
as the future Hercules Intermodal Station 
and the future Richmond and Berkeley Ferry 
terminals. 
Closing this gap will help create a continuous 
Bay Trail between Point Pinole Regional 
Shoreline and the Albany Bulb which will 
serve a variety of communities including 
North Richmond, Point Richmond, the Iron 
Triangle, Marina Bay, El Cerrito, Richmond 
Annex, and Albany. The completed Bay Trail 
will work to connect these communities and 
provide access to recreational opportunities, 
work centers, and commercial areas.   
As a result, this segment of trail will have 
the potential for very high use. 

 
 

40 Points Possible 
 

36 

II. PARTNERSHIP / LEVERAGE   
grant percentage of 

total project cost 
(2 to 10 points) 

80% or greater = 2; 60% to 80% = 
4; 40% to 60% = 6; 20% to 40% = 

8; 20% or less = 10 

The $130,000 grant amount requested 
represents 12.2% of the $1,069,000 total 
project cost. 

10 

Innovative or cost-effective 
design feature 

(0 to 5 points) 

The proposed project will convert a portion 
of an existing roadway right-of-way into a 
Class I trail. 

3 

collaboration between multiple 
parties 

(0 to 10 points) 
low = 0 

medium = 5; high = 10 

The project is a collaboration between the 
City of Richmond and Trails for Richmond 
Action Committee (TRAC). Both TRAC and 
the East Bay Regional Park District (EBRPD) 
have provided matching funds for the design 
of this project. In addition, EBRPD, TRAC, 
Bike East Bay, the North Richmond Municipal 
Advisory Council, the Parchester Village 
Neighborhood Council, the Shields-Reid 
Residents Neighborhood Council, and Verde 
Elementary School have provided letters of 
support.   

10 

 25 Points Possible  
 

23 

III. REGIONAL NEED / 
CONNECTIONS 

  

connects to existing trails, 
destinations and community 

Along with the construction of the 1.5 mile 
Bay Trail spine that will be completed as 

5 



Bay Trail Construction Grant Application Score Sheet 

(0 to 5 points)  part of the Breuner Marsh project, the 0.3-
mile Goodrick Avenue Bay Trail segment will 
close a critical gap and provide a continuous 
Bay Trail from Point Pinole Regional 
Shoreline to the Albany Bulb.  
This extensive stretch of Bay Trail will 
provide access to a large variety of shoreline 
recreational opportunities such as the 
Albany Bulb, Marina Bay, Point Isabel 
Regional Shoreline, Rosie the Riveter WWII 
Homefront National Historical Park, Miller 
Knox Regional Shoreline, and Point Pinole 
Regional Shoreline. In addition, the length of 
continuous Bay Trail that will result from this 
gap closure will create a safe and useful 
commute corridor for bicyclists between 
North Richmond and Albany. Ultimately, this 
stretch of Bay Trail will also serve as a 
connection to regional transit centers such 
as the future Hercules Intermodal Station 
and the future Richmond and Berkeley Ferry 
terminals. 
Closing this gap will help create a continuous 
Bay Trail between Point Pinole Regional 
Shoreline and the Albany Bulb which will 
serve a variety of communities including 
North Richmond, Point Richmond, the Iron 
Triangle, Marina Bay, El Cerrito, Richmond 
Annex, and Albany. The completed Bay Trail 
will work to connect these communities and 
provide access to recreational opportunities, 
work centers, and commercial areas.   

potential to serve as alternative 
transportation route 

(0 to 5 points) 

Once this Bay Trail gap is completed along 
with the Breuner Marsh Bay Trail, it will 
provide a continuous Bay Trail stretching 
from Point Pinole Regional Shoreline in North 
Richmond to Albany. As a result, this Bay 
Trail segment has an extremely high 
potential to serve as an alternative 
transportation corridor to a multitude of 
destinations for recreational, commute, and 
every day purposes. It will also eventually 
serve as a connection to regional 
transportation hubs for the future Hercules 
Intermodal Station, Richmond Ferry 
terminal, and Berkeley Ferry terminal. 

5 

support in local plans 
(0 to 3 points) 

Richmond General Plan, Richmond Bicycle 
Master Plan, Contra Costa County-wide 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, and the MTC 
Regional Bicycle Plan.   

3 

unique opportunity or 
circumstance 
(0 to 2 points) 

This project presents a unique opportunity 
to close a critical Bay Trail gap that results 
in a continuous Bay Trail spine stretching 

2 



Bay Trail Construction Grant Application Score Sheet 

from North Richmond to the Albany Bulb.   
economically-disadvantaged 

community 
(0 to 5 points) 

9% pop. or less below poverty level 
= 0; 10% pop. or greater below 

poverty level = 5 

The proposed project is in Richmond, a city 
categorized by the 2013 U.S. census 
estimates as having 19% of the population 
living below the poverty level. 

5 

 20 Points Possible  
 

20 

IV. READINESS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION 

  

status of environmental review 
(0 to 3 points) 

certification not completed 6 months after 
award = 0; certification completed within 

6 months of award = 2;  
certified = 3 

The City of Richmond is now reviewing the 
draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (IS/MND) prepared according to 
CEQA requirements. City staff indicated 
through a separate email from the grant 
application that they expect the IS/MND to 
be certified by October 2016. 

2 

status of property ownership 
(0 to 3 points) 

not full control = 0 
full control = 3 

The City of Richmond owns the Right-of-Way 
in which the proposed trail will be 
constructed. 

3 

estimated construction start date 
(0 to 4 points) 

More than 6 months from grant 
award = 0 

within 6 months of grant award = 2 
upon grant award = 4 

Project construction for the trail is expected 
to begin April 1, 2017, and completed by 
August 1, 2017. 

0 

 10 Points Possible  
 

5 

V. COMMUNITY SUPPORT   
letters of support from partners and 

local advocates 
(0 to 5 points) 

EBRPD, TRAC, Bike East Bay, the North 
Richmond Municipal Advisory Council, the 
Parchester Village Neighborhood Council, the 
Shields-Reid Residents Neighborhood 
Council, and Verde Elementary School have 
provided letters of support. 

5 

 5 Points Possible  
  

5 

   
Total Score 100 Points Possible 89 

 
 















































MEMO 
 
 
Date:    July 11, 2016 
 
To:    Bay Trail Steering Committee 
 
From:    Laura Thompson 
 
Subject:  Migrations Public Art Program Update 
 

 
Since the presentation to the Bay Trail Board of Directors in March by Fung 
Collaboratives, the Migrations team has been working to advance the vision of this 
regional public art program along the Bay Trail. We are bringing an update to the 
Steering Committee to keep you informed of our efforts, solicit ideas and get feedback 
on ways we can generate funds for the program. 
 
Early project launch 
 
In 2015, the first Migrations installation was dedicated in Redwood City’s Mariner Park. 
“Harambee” by artist Michael Koliner, quite literally engaged the Redwood City 
community in creating a sculptural form that functions as a bench/seating/play 
structure as well as anchors a community gathering space. 
 
Program structure 
 
With the help of our consultants, we established a curatorial advisory committee made 
up of art professionals from Oakland, Palo Alto, Walnut Creek and BART. This group 
engages periodically to discuss funding opportunities and project‐specific concepts. We 
have also created an environmental/trail advisory committee that will help inform site‐
specific projects when they are proposed along the trail. So far, this committee includes 
representation from BCDC and South San Francisco.  
 
Meetings with partners 
 
For the past year, we have been setting up meetings and presentations with Bay Trail 
partners and our consultant team to spread the word about the program and encourage 
participation. Following is a list of the agencies and organizations we have met with and 
we are in the process of setting up more discussions. All groups are enthusiastic about 
the program, but the challenge is securing funding to move forward since most cities 
cannot fully fund public art projects.  
 



BCDC staff 
BCDC Design Review Board 
Oakland 
San Mateo County 
Foster City 
South San Francisco 

Redwood City 
Burlingame 
Emeryville 
Richmond 
Facebook 

 
Grant applications 
 
We have applied for several art and placemaking grants, but to‐date, we have not been 
successful. These programs are highly competitive, but we will continue to submit 
project ideas as we learn about funding opportunities. 
 

o 2014, Bloomberg $1 million, with cities of Oakland, Palo Alto and East Palo Alto 
 

o 2015, Kresge Foundation “Art and Culture” program, $1 million for overall 
program development and artworks in Richmond and East Palo Alto. Will reapply 
after developing stronger community partnerships up front, may change site.  

 
o 2015, ArtPlace “National Creative Placemaking” program, $250,000, for 

“Fireflies” 
 

o 2016, Kenneth Rannin “Open Spaces Program” letter of interest submitted in 
June for “sight‐site bridge” artwork on San Francisco and Oakland shorelines in 
line of sight across the bay from each other 

  
New funding proposal 
 
We are now considering a proposal to request $10,000 donations from shoreline land 
managers (cities, ports, park districts) to contribute to a large scale regional art project 
that can travel around the trail shared by multiple jurisdictions.  
 
Created by internationally‐famous Chinese 
artist Cai Guo‐Qiang, “Fireflies” is a luminous 
kinetic sculpture exhibition that engages 
communities through a parade of human‐
powered vehicles. This exhibition could travel 
from city to city involving the community and 
raising awareness about the Bay Trail.  
 
We would like to have a discussion with the 
Steering Committee about this idea and 
other thoughts on how to advance 
Migrations. 



Mig

Migra
San 
gathe
linke
has t
state
agen
uniqu
and w
Proje
Lanc
has d
the B
repre
first m

Migra
25, 2
all ag
adob
resul

The 
to do
are r
fundr
artwo

grations	

ations will c
Francisco B
er, connect
d by over 3
the potentia
e and nation
ncies, reinfo
ue destinat
will work clo
ects to initia
ce Fung con
developed 
Bay Area.  A
esentative f
member.  

ations was 
2015.  Artist
ges particip
be like subs
lting in a co

Migrations 
o so with the
relevant to t
raising stra
ork per yea

create dest
Bay Trail th
t and exper
340 miles of
al to involve
nal parks, p
orcing the c
ion for art e
osely with t
ate and imp
nceived Mig
an art advis
An environm
from the Ba

launched w
t Michael K

pated in sto
stance.  Thi
ommunity-m

team has in
e hopes of 
the environ
tegies are 

ar.��

�

ination art e
hat appeal t
rience some
f Bay Trail 
e 47 shoreli
ports, marin
connectivity
enthusiasts
the Associa
plement art 
grations an
sory comm
mental adv
ay Conserva

with a temp
Koliner crea

mping in m
s material w

made series

ntroduced t
developing
ment and c
in place wit

experiences
to a broad a
ething new 
in all nine B
ine cities, n

nas and oth
y between c
. Cities will 

ation of Bay
exhibits.  In
d will overs
ittee of lead
isory comm
ation and D

porary proje
ted a huge 

mud, sand, s
was applied
s of park be

the initiative
g partnershi
community 
th the goal 

s along exi
audience, e
and inspiri

Bay Area co
nine countie
er shoreline

cities and p
serve as h

y Area Gove
nternationa
see the ong
ding public 

mittee is bei
Developmen

ect in Redw
public eve

straw and w
d to the arti
enches for R

e to many c
ips to realiz
that it serve
to create a

sting sectio
encouraging
ng along th
ounties. Mi
es, local, re
e managem
romoting th

hosts of the 
ernments a

ally renowne
going exhib

art profess
ing develop
nt Commiss

wood City on
nt where re

water to cre
ist’s structu
Redwood C

cities and w
ze art instal
es.  Ongoin
t least one 

ons of the 
g people to
he shoreline
igrations 
gional, 

ment 
he trail as a

artwork 
and FC 
ed curator 
ition.  He 

sionals from
ped with a 
sion as our

n October 
esidents of 
eate an 
ural forms 
City. 

will continue
llations that
ng 
new 

o 
e, 

a 

m 

r 

e 
t 


	1_07-18-16 Agenda.pdf
	2_May 2 2016 Steering Committee Minutes
	3_Stanly Lane Bay Trail Spur Grant Request Memo
	3_Stanly Lane Spur Planning Score Sheet
	3_Stanly Lane Design Grant Application
	3_ABAG Grant Support Letter  from NOSD
	4_Vallejo Bluff Final Design & Engineering Grant Memo
	4_Vallejo Bluff Trail PS&E Score Sheet
	4_Vallejo Bluff Trail Design & Engineering Application
	1.pdf
	2
	Vallejo Bluff Trail Design & Engineering Budget Schedule ADA GHG CEQA
	3
	4
	5
	6

	4_Bonilla Dodd Vallejo Bluff Support Ltr
	4_Delta Trail Vallejo Bluff support letter
	5_Goodrick Avenue Bay Trail Construction Grant Steering Committee Memo
	5_Goodrick Avenue Bay Trail Construction Grant Score Sheet
	5_Goodrick Avenue Bay Trail Construction Grant Application
	6_Migrations check-in memo
	6_2016 Migrations statement



